
 
   
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
LICENSING (HEARINGS) SUB-COMMITTEE 
 
DATE: THURSDAY, 28 NOVEMBER 2024  
TIME: 10:00 am 
PLACE: Meeting Room G.02, Ground Floor, City Hall, 115 Charles 

Street, Leicester, LE1 1FZ 
 
Members of the Sub-Committee 
 
Councillors Pickering, Adatia, Cank and Kennedy-Lount 
 
Members of the Sub-Committee are summoned to attend the above 
meeting to consider the items of business listed overleaf. 
 
 

 
 
for Monitoring Officer 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Officer contact: 
Katie Jordan, Governance Services Officer / Julian Yeung, Governance Support Assistant,  

email: committees@leicester.gov.uk 

 



Information for Members of the Public 
 
Attending meetings and access to information 
 
You have the right to attend formal meetings such as full Council, committee meetings, City 
Mayor & Executive Public Briefing and Scrutiny Commissions and see copies of agendas and 
minutes. On occasion however, meetings may, for reasons set out in law, need to consider 
some items in private.  
 
Dates of meetings and copies of public agendas and minutes are available on the Council’s 
website at www.cabinet.leicester.gov.uk, from the Council’s Customer Service Centre or by 
contacting us using the details below.  
 
Making meetings accessible to all 
 
Wheelchair access – Public meeting rooms at the City Hall are accessible to wheelchair users.  
Wheelchair access to City Hall is from the middle entrance door on Charles Street - press the 
plate on the right hand side of the door to open the door automatically. 
 
Braille/audio tape/translation - If you require this please contact the Governance Support 
Officer (production times will depend upon equipment/facility availability). 
 
Induction loops - There are induction loop facilities in City Hall meeting rooms.  Please speak to 
the Governance Support Officer using the details below. 
 
Filming and Recording the Meeting - The Council is committed to transparency and supports 
efforts to record and share reports of proceedings of public meetings through a variety of 
means, including social media.  In accordance with government regulations and the Council’s 
policy, persons and press attending any meeting of the Council open to the public (except 
Licensing Sub Committees and where the public have been formally excluded) are allowed to 
record and/or report all or part of that meeting.  Details of the Council’s policy are available at 
www.leicester.gov.uk or from Governance Services. 
 
If you intend to film or make an audio recording of a meeting you are asked to notify the 
relevant Governance Support Officer in advance of the meeting to ensure that participants can 
be notified in advance and consideration given to practicalities such as allocating appropriate 
space in the public gallery etc.. 
 
The aim of the Regulations and of the Council’s policy is to encourage public interest and 
engagement so in recording or reporting on proceedings members of the public are asked: 
✓ to respect the right of others to view and hear debates without interruption; 
✓ to ensure that the sound on any device is fully muted and intrusive lighting avoided; 
✓ where filming, to only focus on those people actively participating in the meeting; 
✓ where filming, to (via the Chair of the meeting) ensure that those present are aware that 

they may be filmed and respect any requests to not be filmed. 
 
Further information  
 
If you have any queries about any of the above or the business to be discussed, please contact 
us on committees@leicester.gov.uk, or call in at City Hall. 
 
For Press Enquiries - please phone the Communications Unit on 0116 454 4151. 

 

 

http://www.cabinet.leicester.gov.uk/
http://www.leicester.gov.uk/


LEICESTER CITY COUNCIL LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
PROCEDURAL GUIDE 
 
INTRODUCTORY PHASE 
 
The meeting will be held in public unless stated otherwise in the report. 
 
Present at the hearing will be Members of the Licensing Sub-Committee (minimum 3 
Members), Officers from the Licensing Authority, a Legal Adviser to the Sub-Committee, an 
Officer from Governance Services. 
 
1. Participants at the meeting will introduce themselves as follows: 
 

a. Members and Officers 
b. Statutory Consultees (if any) 
c. The Applicant and any representatives 
d. Persons who have made representations 

 
2. The Chair will check that the Applicant has received a copy of the Officer report. 
 
INFORMATION GATHERING 
 
(*Please Note – for the purposes of a hearing to determine an application in a 
Cumulative Impact Zone (CIZ), the Applicant will present their case first) 
 
3. The Licensing Officer presents the report (previously circulated) 
 

Questions (for clarification purposes only): 
Members 
Statutory Consultees (if any) 
Persons who have made representations 
Applicant and Representative(s) 

 
4. Depending on the nature of the report, Statutory Consultees present their comments. 
 

Questions (for clarification purposes only): 
Members 
Officers 
Persons who have made representations 
Applicant and Representative(s) 

 
5. Persons who have made representations 
 

Questions (for clarification purposes only): 
Members 
Officers 
Statutory Consultees (is any) 
Applicant and Representative(s) 

 
6. *Applicant’s Case 
 

Questions (for clarification purposes only): 
Members 
Officers 



Statutory Consultees 
Persons who have made representations 

 
7. Summing up in the following order 
 

Officers 
Statutory Consultees 
Persons who have made representations 
*Applicant and Representative(s) 

 
8. The Legal Adviser to the Sub-Committee to advise the Sub-Committee in the 

presence of the Applicant, Representatives, Officers, Statutory Consultees, and 
persons who have made representations on relevant issues the Members need to be 
aware of when they come to make their decision.  

 
DECISION MAKING 
 
9. Apart from the Sub-Committee Members and the Governance Support Officer 

everyone will be asked to withdraw from the meeting The Legal Adviser to the Sub-
Committee may be called back to the meeting to advise on the wording of the 
decision the Sub-Committee Members will have made during private deliberation. 

 
10. The Applicant will be advised that the decision made by the Sub-Committee will be 

made public within 5 working days of the meeting. 
 



PUBLIC SESSION 
 

AGENDA 
 

 
FIRE / EMERGENCY EVACUATION  
If the emergency alarm sounds, you must evacuate the building immediately by the 
nearest available fire exit and proceed to the area outside the Ramada Encore Hotel 
on Charles Street as directed by Governance Services staff. Further instructions will 
then be given. 
  
1.   Appointment of Chair   

 
  

 
2.  Apologies for Absence   

 
  

 
3.   Declarations of Interest 

 
  

 Members are asked to declare any interests they may have in the business to 
be discussed. 
  

4.   Minutes of Previous Meeting 
 

Appendix A 
(Pages 1 - 10) 

 The minutes of the previous meetings held on 14th August 2024 and 16th 
October 2024 are attached and members will be asked to confirm them as a 
correct record. 
  

5.   Private Session 
 

  



 AGENDA 
 
MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC TO NOTE 
 
Under the law, the Sub-Committee is entitled to consider certain items in 
private where in the circumstances the public interest in maintaining the 
matter exempt from publication outweighs the public interest in disclosing 
the information. Members of the public will be asked to leave the meeting 
when such items are discussed. 
 
The Sub-Committee is recommended to consider the following reports in private 
on the grounds that they contain ‘exempt’ information as defined by the Local 
Government (Access to Information) Act 1985, as amended, and consequently 
that the Sub-Committee makes the following resolution:- “that the press and 
public be excluded during consideration of the following reports in accordance 
with the provisions of Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, as 
amended, because they involve the likely disclosure of 'exempt' information, as 
defined in the Paragraphs detailed below of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, 
and taking all the circumstances into account, it is considered that the public 
interest in maintaining the information as exempt outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information.” 
 
Paragraph 1 
 
Information relating to an individual. 
 
Paragraph 2 
 
Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual. 
 
Paragraph 7 
 
Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection with the 
prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime. 
 
B1) APPLICATION FOR A REVIEW OF AN EXISTING PREMISES LICENCE - 
PAPA FRITES, 82 GRANBY STREET, LEICESTER LE1 1DJ 
  

6.   Application for a Review of an Existing Premises 
Licence - Papa Frites, 82 Granby Street, Leicester 
LE1 1DJ 
 

Appendix B 
(Pages 11 - 56) 

 The Director of Neighbourhood and Environmental Services submits a report for 
an application for a review of the existing premises licence for Papa Frites, 82 
Granby Street, Leicester LE1 1DJ. 
  

7.   Any Other Urgent Business   
 

  
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Minutes of the Meeting of the 
LICENSING (HEARINGS) SUB-COMMITTEE 
 
 
Held: WEDNESDAY, 14 AUGUST 2024 at 2:00 pm 
 
 
 

P R E S E N T: 
 

Councillor Singh Johal (Chair)  
 

Councillor Cank 
Councillor Cole 

Councillor Kennedy-Lount 
 

  
 

* * *   * *   * * *  
1. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR 
 
 Councillor Singh Johal was appointed as Chair. 

  
2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
 There were no apologies for absence. 

  
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
 There were no declarations of interest. 

  
4. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
 The Minutes of the previous meeting held on 3 July 2024 were confirmed as a 

correct record. 
  

5. APPLICATION FOR A NEW PREMISES LICENCE - LIYA SUPERMARKET, 
62 HINCKLEY ROAD, LEICESTER 

 
 The Director of Neighbourhood and Environmental Services submitted a report 

on an application for a new premises licence for Liya Supermarket, 62 Hinckley 
Road, Leicester. 
 
The applicant, Ms Mhamad was present with her representative, Licensing 
Agent, Mr Clarke. Mr Patel and Dr Patel were present in objection to the 
application on the grounds of the prevention of crime and disorder, prevention 
of public nuisance, public safety and the protection of children from harm. Also 

 

1



 

 

present were the Licensing Team Manager and Legal Advisor to the Sub-
Committee. 
 
The Chair led on introductions, highlighted fire safety and evacuation 
procedures and outlined the process the meeting would follow. 
 
The Licensing Team Manager presented the report and outlined details of the 
application. 
 
Mr Patel and Dr Patel were given the opportunity to outline the details of their 
representation and answered questions from Members and officers. 
 
The applicant and her representative were given the opportunity to address the 
Sub-Committee and answered questions from the Sub-Committee.  
 
All parties present were then given the opportunity to sum up their positions 
and make any final comments. 
 
The Sub-Committee received legal advice from the Legal Adviser to the Sub- 
Committee in the presence of all those present and were advised of the options 
available to them in making their decision. The Sub-Committee were also 
advised of the relevant policy and statutory guidance that needed to be taken 
into account when making their decision. 
 
In reaching their decision, Members felt they should deliberate in private on the 
basis that this was in the public interest, and as such outweighed the public 
interest of their deliberation taking place with the parties represented present, 
in accordance with the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005. 
 
The Chair announced that the decision and reasons would be publicly 
announced in writing within five working days. The Chair informed the meeting 
that the Legal Adviser to the Sub-Committee would be called back to give 
advice on the wording of the decision. 
 
The Chair then informed the meeting that all but the Governance Services 
Officers should withdraw from the room. The Sub-Committee then deliberated 
in private to consider their decision. The Sub-Committee recalled the Legal 
Adviser to the Sub-Committee to give advice on the wording of the decision. 
 
RESOLVED: 

That the application for a new premises licence for Liya 
Supermarket, 62 Hinckley Road, Leicester be GRANTED subject 
to the following conditions: 
 

Conditions: 
 

1. The supply of alcohol hours only to be permitted between 8am and 
10pm 
2. The CCTV camera coverage should extend to the whole of the area 
immediately at the front of the supermarket and the rear yard. The 

2



 

 

licence holder to ensure that viewable images are provided to an officer 
of a responsible authority within 14 days of a request being made 
3. The licence holder must take all reasonable steps to ensure that no 
individuals gather, loiter, drink alcohol or smoke in the area immediately 
in front of the premises 
4. The licence- holder must ensure that she and other members of staff 
do not smoke or take breaks in the area immediately in front of the 
premises 
5. The licence holder must take all reasonable steps to ensure 
customers purchasing alcohol from the premises do not open any 
drinking vessel either in the premises or in the area immediately in front 
of the premises 
6. The licence holder must ensure the front of the premises is clear of 
litter at all times,and 
7. The licence holder must comply with the conditions consistent with 
the operating schedule and the conditions consistent with the police 
representation and agreement dated 10th July 2024 set out at appendix 
C of the committee papers 

 
The Applicant would be provided with reasons for the decision in writing within 
5 working days. 
 
All parties would be advised of the right to appeal the decision. 
  

6. APPLICATION FOR A REVIEW OF AN EXISTING PREMISES LICENCE 
FOR CURRY FLAVOUR RESTAURANT AND BAR, 225 UPPINGHAM 
ROAD, LEICESTER 

 
 The Director of Neighbourhood and Environmental Services submitted a report 

on an application for the review of an existing premises licence for Curry 
Flavour Restaurant and Bar, 225 Uppingham Road, Leicester. 
 
The current Premises Licence Holder (PLH), Mr Natvarlal was present with 
Licensing Agent,, Mr Bhavsar of Greenhill Licensing. Ms. Moore and Mr 
Robinson of the Licensing Enforcement Team was present. Also present were 
the Licensing Team Manager and Legal Advisor to the Sub-Committee. 
 
The Chair led on introductions and outlined the procedure the meeting would 
follow. 
 
The Licensing Team Manager presented the report and outlined details of the 
application. It was noted that the review, which pertained to the premises under 
the control of its’ previous licence holder, Mr Lacmo, was originally due to be 
heard by the Sub-Committee on 5th June 2024, but had been adjourned to 30th 
July 2024 following the submission of an application for the transfer in PLH to 
Mr Natvarlal. Due to unforeseen circumstances, the meeting had to be 
adjourned to 14th August 2024. 
 
Ms Moore of Licensing Enforcement was given the opportunity to outline the 
details of the representation and answered questions from Members and 

3



 

 

officers. As per the written representation and timeline of events provided in the 
report, the Licensing Enforcement team highlighted the lack of faith in the 
previous licence holder to uphold their responsibilities and adhere to the 
conditions of the licence and requested that the licence be revoked. 
 
The current PLH and his representative were given the opportunity to address 
the Sub-Committee and answered questions from the Sub-Committee. 
Confusion regarding the presence of the current PLH at the Sub-Committee 
was noted due to the review pertaining to the previous licence holder, who was 
not present. It was however noted that the previous PLH was retained on the 
current licence as te designated premises supervisor. 
 
All parties present were then given the opportunity to sum up their positions 
and make any final comments. 
 
The Sub-Committee received legal advice from the Legal Adviser to the Sub- 
Committee in the presence of all those present and were advised of the options 
available to them in making their decision. The Sub-Committee were also 
advised of the relevant policy and statutory guidance that needed to be taken 
into account when making their decision. 
 
In reaching their decision, Members felt they should deliberate in private on the 
basis that this was in the public interest, and as such outweighed the public 
interest of their deliberation taking place with the parties represented present, 
in accordance with the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005. 
 
The Chair announced that the decision and reasons would be publicly 
announced in writing within five working days. The Chair informed the meeting 
that the Legal Adviser to the Sub-Committee would be called back to give 
advice on the wording of the decision. 
 
The Chair then informed the meeting that all but the Governance Services 
Officers should withdraw from the room. The Sub-Committee then deliberated 
in private to consider their decision. The Sub-Committee recalled the Legal 
Adviser to the Sub-Committee to give advice on the wording of the decision. 
 
RESOLVED: 

That Mr Dharmesh Lacmo be REMOVED as the Designated 
Premises Supervisor for Curry Flavour Restaurant and Bar, 225 
Uppingham Road, Leicester. 
 

The Premises Licence Holder would be provided with reasons for the decision 
in writing within 5 working days. 
 
All parties would be advised of the right to appeal the decision. 
  

7. ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS 
 
 There being no other urgent business, the meeting closed at 5:28pm. 

  

4



Minutes of the Meeting of the
LICENSING (HEARINGS) SUB-COMMITTEE

Held: WEDNESDAY, 16 OCTOBER 2024 at 10:00 am

P R E S E N T:

Councillor Singh Johal (Chair) 

Councillor Chauhan Councillor Pickering

* * *   * *   * * *
1. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR

Councillor Singh Johal was appointed as Chair.

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

There were no apologies for absence.

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest made.

4. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

The minutes of the meetings held on 16th February 2024 and 22nd April 2024 
were confirm them as a correct record.

5. APPLICATION FOR A NEW PREMISES LICENCE - LOKMA SHAWARMA, 
164 EVINGTON ROAD, LEICESTER, LE2 1HL

Councillor Singh Johal, as Chair led on introductions and outlined the 
procedure the hearing would follow.

The Director of Neighbourhood and Environmental Services submitted a report 
on an application of a new premises licence for Lokma Shawarma, 164 
Evington Road, Leicester, LE2 1HL.

Mr Wajahat Masood, the son of the applicant, was in attendance. Also in 
attendance was Elizabeth Arculus, Licensing Enforcement team, Chris White, 

5



Noise and Pollution team, and PC Jefferson Pritchard, Leicestershire Police. 
Ms Jane Russell, local resident from the area of the premises, was present as 
objector. Also present was the Licensing Team Manager (Policy and 
Applications) and the Legal Adviser to the Sub-Committee.

The Licensing Team Manager (Policy and Applications) presented the report 
and outlined details of the application.

Three representations were received on 3rd September 2024 from members of 
the public. The representations related to the prevention of crime and disorder, 
the prevention of public nuisance and public safety. The representees were 
concerned that this was a densely populated area and the late hours requested 
would increase noise, litter, parking issues and anti-social behaviour.

A representation was received on 30th September 2024 from the Police. The 
representation related to the prevention of crime and disorder, the prevention of 
public nuisance, public safety and the protection of children from harm. The 
representee was concerned that the premises is located with an area of 
‘special interest’ as referred to the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy, but 
the applicant had made no reference to this and was extremely vague as to 
how they would operate and promote the licensing objectives.

A representation was received on 27th September 2024 from the Noise team. 
The representation related to the prevention of public nuisance. The 
representee was concerned that noise from the premises and delivery 
companies until 5.00am would likely cause nuisance to local residents. They 
had been in contact with the applicant and had agreed conditions.

A representation was received on 25th September 2024 from the Licensing 
Enforcement team. The representation related to the prevention of crime and 
disorder, the prevention of public nuisance, public safety and the protection of 
children from harm. The representee was concerned that the timings and 
activity applied for plus the lack of detail on the operating schedule may have 
an impact on the local community. They had been in contact with the applicant 
and had agreed conditions.

PC Pritchard was given the opportunity to outline the details of their 
representation.

Ms Arculus, Licensing Officer was given the opportunity to outline the details of 
their representation and answered questions from Members and Objector.

Mr White was given the opportunity to outline the details of their representation 
and answered questions from Members.

Ms Russell given the opportunity to outline the details of their representation 
and answered questions from Members.

Mr Masood was given the opportunity to address the Sub-Committee and 
answered questions from Members, Officers and Objector.

6



All parties present were then given the opportunity to sum up their positions 
and make any final comments.

The Sub-Committee received legal advice from the Legal Adviser to the Sub-
Committee in the presence of all those present and were advised of the options 
available to them in making their decision. The Sub-Committee were also 
advised of the relevant policy and statutory guidance that needed to be taken 
into account when making their decision.

In reaching their decision, Members felt they should deliberate in private on the 
basis that this was in the public interest, and as such outweighed the public 
interest of their deliberation taking place with the parties represented present, 
in accordance with the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005.

The Chair announced that the decision and reasons would be announced in 
writing within five working days. The Chair informed the meeting that the Legal 
Adviser to the Sub-Committee would be called back to give advice on the 
wording of the decision.

The Sub-Committee recalled the Legal Adviser to the Sub-Committee to give 
advice on the wording of the decision.

RESOLVED:
Members of the sub-committee considered each of the options 
available to them and decided to REJECT the application for a 
new premises licence.

REASONS

In considering the application by Lokma Shawarma Ltd for a Premises Licence 
authorising the provision of late night refreshment at the Lokma Shawarma 
restaurant / takeaway at 164 Evington Road, Leicester, the Sub-Committee has 
considered the Licensing Officer’s Report and all the relevant representations, 
both written and oral. The Sub-Committee has taken account of all relevant 
legislation, the Statutory Guidance, the Regulators’ Code and the Council’s 
Licensing Policy. The Sub-Committee has had regard in its deliberations to the 
steps appropriate to promote the licensing objectives in the overall interest of 
the local community, and has decided the matter on its merits on the evidence 
presented to it. The Sub-Committee has had regard to the public sector 
equality duty detailed in section 149 the Equality Act 2010 and has taken a risk 
based approach to its decision which has been made on the balance of 
probability. The Sub-Committee has, as it is required to do, limited its 
deliberation to the promotion of the licensing objectives (with each licensing 
objective being of equal importance) and nothing outside of those parameters.

Evington Road is a busy area of the City with a high density of residential 
properties mixed with retail and licensed premises. The Council’s Statement of 
Licensing Policy 2022 - 2027 details the area as an area of Special Interest in 
terms of alcohol harm, street drinking, anti-social behaviour. The premises, 

7



which has an indoor seating capacity for approximately 18-20 people, backs on 
to residential housing between Rowsley Street and Sawley Street. The 
premises is subject to planning permission granted on 10 December 2015 
which provides for operating hours from 9am to 11pm seven days a week.

The application was made by Lokma Shawarma Ltd which was incorporated on 
13 May 2024. Masood Akhtar is the sole Director and he is detailed at 
Companies House as the person with significant control of the Company.
Late night refreshment involves the supply of ‘hot food or hot drink’ between 
the hours of 11pm and 5am to the public for consumption on or off the 
premises. The original application sought authorisation of Late Night 
Refreshment both indoors and outdoors at the restaurant seven days a week 
from 11pm to 5am so that the premises could be operated as a takeaway in the 
night time economy. Following discussion with the Noise Team and Licensing 
Enforcement, the applicant amended the requested hours to run from 11pm to 
1.30am daily and those Teams withdrew their opposition to the application 
subject to the imposition of conditions agreed with the applicant in the event a 
Licence was granted. The Sub-Committee heard from both Teams at the 
hearing. The Noise Team indicated its view that with a 1.30am terminal hour, 
despite the flue at the premises, the business would not add to the overall 
noise levels in the area. Licensing Enforcement indicated its belief that 
compliance with the conditions agreed with the applicant would allow a Licence 
to be operated successfully.

Representations were received in opposition to the application from local 
residents and Leicestershire Police. Those objections remained at the hearing 
based on all of the licensing objectives.

Of the three representations made by residents, one was made on behalf of the 
members of the Evington Road Neighbourhood Association. A member of the 
Association attended the hearing. The residents have previously complained to 
Planning Enforcement that the premises has been operated outside of the 
hours permitted under its planning permission. The Sub-Committee was 
informed that Planning Enforcement had written to the applicant regarding this. 
Residents have also previously complained to Licensing Enforcement that the 
premises has been providing unlicensed Late Night Refreshment. In response 
Licensing Enforcement visited the premises on 27 July 2024 and although no 
incidents were witnessed at the time they issued an advice letter which they 
surmised prompted the current application. The residents believe the 
concentration of fast-food premises licensed along Evington Road for Late 
Night Refreshment is excessive. They emphasise this is a densely populated 
area and the requested late hours will increase already existing noise 
nuisance, litter problems, parking issues and anti-social behaviour. They are 
concerned that this late-night economy has in recent years attracted crime and 
disorder to the area with fights, stabbings and, in one recent instance, a drive-
by shooting. Some local residents now feel unsafe on Evington Road at night. 
The residents believe the operating hours of the premises should be those 
detailed in the planning permission so that the premises closes by 11pm daily.

Leicestershire Police reminded the Sub-Committee that the Council’s 

8



Statement of Licensing Policy 2022 - 2027 details the area as an area of 
Special Interest in terms of alcohol harm, street drinking, anti-social behaviour. 
They are concerned that the application makes no reference to this and how 
the licensing objectives will be promoted. The Police are concerned that the 
business had been operating in breach of planning permission and without a 
Licence. The Police explained that the area was well known for its late hours 
and attracted a large number of people from outside Leicester who came to 
buy late night food and meet. This had contributed to an increase in violent 
crime. In November 2023, there was a double shooting outside the premises 
which led to 12 arrests relating to attempted murder. Throughout 2024, there 
have been several incidents of serious crime and disorder in close proximity to 
the premises and other similar licensed premises along Evington Road. These 
include reports of weapons offences involving guns and knives. There have 
been public order offences and serious assaults involving stabbings and large 
scale fights. The Police are taking a multi-agency approach to serious violence 
reduction which includes working with social workers, schools and colleges, the 
Youth Offending Team and community leaders and local mosques. The area is 
already saturated with food establishments and takeaways with an increase in 
vehicle and foot traffic which has a direct impact on the local residential 
community who suffer with noise nuisance and parking issues as a result. This 
is regularly reported to the Police and local councillors receive complaints 
about noise, anti-social behaviour and inconsiderate parking. The Police 
indicated that they are currently having crime and disorder, public safety, public 
nuisance, and issues with unsupervised children along Evington Road. 
Allowing the premises to stay open beyond 11pm, would provide an attraction 
for people to congregate. The Police say licensing these premises will 
exacerbate the existing issues in the area. They are of the view that no 
conditions could be attached to a Licence to mitigate their concerns.

The Sub-Committee was addressed on behalf of the applicant by the son of the 
sole director of Lokma Shawarma Ltd. He indicated the restaurant had been 
operating for 7 years and that his father had purchased the business in May 
2024. His father had been a businessman for 15 years. He accepted that the 
business had been operating past 11pm staying open until 30 minutes past 
midnight especially at weekends. They knew this was in breach of the planning 
permission but they were not aware until they were visited by Licensing 
Enforcement that a Licence was required for the provision of Late Night 
Refreshment. He indicated the premises next door was open late hours so they 
thought they should be able to do the same. He indicated that the customers 
were mainly local residents. He believed other business in the area were 
licensed past 11pm so he believed the application should be granted.

The Sub-Committee was concerned that the applicant had presented a written 
application which the Police had correctly referred to as vague. In detailing the 
Evington Road area as one of Special Interest in its Statement of Licensing 
Policy 2022 – 2027, the Council lists relevant environmental factors which an 
applicant should have in mind for consultation with the appropriate responsible 
authorities. These are: Number of existing licensed premises; Types of 
licensed premises; Density and locality of residential premises; Traffic or 
pedestrianised areas; Conservation, cultural areas and/or sensitive premises; 

9



Alcohol related Public Health concerns; Anti-Social Behaviour including 
Community Protection; and, Noise Pollution. The applicant had failed to 
address these issues in its written application or at the hearing. The Sub-
Committee was also concerned that the business had been operated without a 
Licence and in breach of the permitted planning hours. The Sub-Committee 
has no confidence that the applicant would comply with Licence conditions. 
Evington Road is a difficult area for the Police to enforce and residents are 
understandably concerned with the level of crime and noise disturbance to their 
lives. It is clear that all of the licensing objectives are engaged and the grant of 
the application would undermine the promotion of those objectives.

The Sub-Committee’s decision was made in the interests of promoting the 
licensing objectives.

Any appeal against the decision must be made within 21 days to the 
Magistrates Court.

6. ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS

There being no other urgent business, the meeting closed at 11:25am.

10



Document is Restricted

11

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.





Document is Restricted

17

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.





Document is Restricted

49

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.





Document is Restricted

53

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.




	Agenda
	4 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	minutes 16102024_Licensing Hearings Sub-Committee

	6 Application for a Review of an Existing Premises Licence - Papa Frites, 82 Granby Street, Leicester LE1 1DJ
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Photos


